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1ST GRADUATION   January 22, 1915

The first graduating class of  St Joseph’s School of Nursing 
had their ceremony on January 22, 1915. 

Graduation Ceremony was held in Undermount Nurses Residence. 
The ground was covered with a great white blanket. 

The impressive and elaborate ceremony took place at 8 pm in the lecture hall 
amidst prominent members of the Hamilton clergy, laity and medical professions 

who together with friends and relatives, enjoyed the musical programme 
prepared by the 9 young graduates. 

A handsomely engraved medal, given for outstanding work, and huge bouquets of 
pink roses were presented to the nurses. 

Following Graduation exercises the nurses returned to duty with their patients.

GRADUATES 1915
There are 8 nurses in the photo

there are 9 names of grads with the photo
record book lists names of 13 graduates

Photos of the Sisters were not permitted in the class photos 

St. Joseph’s Graduate pin was designed by Sister St. Basil 
of the Sisters of St. Joseph 

while she was the superintendent of Nurses in 1915. 

1915 Class Ring

Sister M. Gerard Morin ‘15



The birth of St. Joseph’s School of Nursing Alumnae Association  

The St. Joseph Hospital Alumnae was organized in 1915 

under the convenorship of Misses Ada Egan and Jean Morin, 

assisted by Mother Helen Superior of the Hospital and Sister St. Basil                        

Superintendent of Nurses.

After much planning and formulating of the constitutions and 

by-laws the nucleus of the present association was formed,  

with  Miss Ella Kelly as president.  

The Alumnae grew and progressed over the years always working 

hand in hand with the School of Nursing. 

The  graduates of the School form the body of the alumnae today.      

Ella Kelly ‘15

was the 1st President of the Nurses Alumnae

She was President from 1915 - 1933

GRADUATES ATTENDING THE 1947 REUNION

Graduates of the class of 1915

Ana Maloney    Sister St. Basil    Jean Morin     Sister St. Gerard     Ella Kelly

Past Alumnae Presidents

Back Row:       Iva             Kathleen           Leona            Elizabeth          Eva            Mildred         Irene

Loyst ’24    O’Brien ’24     Hudecki ’41      Quinn ’20     Moran ’20     Hayes ‘27     Murray ‘19

Front Row:                            Doris Crossley ’32                        Ella Kelly ‘15

St Joseph’s 60th Anniversary Celebrations
Solemn High Mass was celebrated on the lawn of Marygrove. Estimated 500 guests attended 

Mass was followed by an open house of the hospital from  2 – 4 pm. 
Guests were met at the door by Sister Superior M Geraldine ’30 then guided through the 

hospital by the nurses. The Ladies Auxiliary of the hospital served tea on the lawn,  

The nurses annual Reunion Dinner was held on the same day, Thursday June 8th, 1950
The graduates attended the 60th Anniversary celebrations. 

This picture of past Alumnae Presidents was taken at the reunion



GRADUATES ATTENDING THE 1947 REUNION

Genevieve Boyes ‘17      Margaret Lenhard ‘16      Nora Finn ‘18      Helen Fagan ‘17      

1916

ADDITION OF THE SURGICAL WING INCREASED HOSPITAL BEDS TO 155

Four nurses graduated from St Joseph’s School of Nursing in 1916. 

Graduation ceremony was held in Undermount Nurses Residence.

Graduates were Margaret Hamilton, Margaret Lenhard, Edna McClarty, and Mabel McClarty.



GRADUATION 1921

Graduation ceremony was held in Undermount Nurses Residence. 
There were 8 graduates in the class of 1921

Pictures of the nuns were not permitted in the school photos. 

Prior to 1911 St Joseph’s Hospital was staffed by the Sisters of St Joseph who had received their training 
under Sisters Martina Long and Leo Cass who had gone to Mercy Hospital, Kalamazoo, Michigan. 

They returned to open a School of Nursing in Guelph. So numerous were the applications to that course that 
some were referred to St. Joseph’s in Hamilton.

As the hospital increased in bed capacity the Sisters made the decision  to open a school for lay nurses.
The Sisters bought Adam Brown’s residence at the corner of St. Joseph’s Drive and Mountwood Avenue. 

The first two students entered the school of nursing on September 8,  1911

The remainder of graduates entered at various times until a sufficient number was reached
in order to have a graduation. 

The building was later demolished to build a new nurses’ residence called  “Undermount” under the 
direction of Mother Mary Thecla and Sister St. Basil.  While construction was underway students were displaced in 

scattered living arrangements and some students lived in the hospital itself. 

Information obtained from archival records 
indicate the following information

1900 Sister M. St Basil
Sister M. Herman 

1902 Sister M. Evarista
1910 Sister M. Angelica

Sister M. Gerard Moran
Sister M. Joseph
Sister M. Mildred

1914 Sister M. Consill
Sister M. Dympsa

1915 Sister M. Loretto Gainer
Sister M. Vincent Bergin



UNDERMOUNT NURSES RESIDENCE
Reception Room in Undermount Residence 1922

UNDERMOUNT CLASS ROOM

The nurses residence was called “Undermount” and was opened November 28, 1922 .

Student enrollment was 50 and the building could accommodate 100 students.

The school had an up-to-date teaching unit, libraries and reception room.

The building was erected at a cost of $155,000. 

The furnishings cost another $18,000 for a total cost of $173,000

The building which is laid out in the form of an L and which is 206 feet long, is 

located on John Street South just south of the main buildings of St. Joseph’s Hospital. 

Communication for the nurses and Sisters between the training school and the main 

hospital is afforded through a tunnel, well-lighted and heated which runs under the site 

of the proposed Mountain Roadway and which is 175 feet long. 

Bedrooms

Tunnel



GRADUATION 1926

Graduation exercises took place in Undermount Nurses Residence

Pictures of the nuns were not permitted in the class photos. 

PRIZE WINNERS 1931

Doris Ionson Award for highest standing in theory

Ina Vokes Award for general proficiency

Irene Guay Award for efficiency in bedside nursing

Elsie Lindsay Award for preventative medicine

Frances Armstrong Award for gynecological nursing and examination

Doris Hartwick Award for obstetrical nursing

Hazel Waddell Award for medical nursing and examination

Graduation 1931

Rev. Dr. J. A. O’Reilly Chancellor of the Hamilton Diocese 

Stated training eminently qualified any woman for the duties of wifehood and motherhood. 



GRADUATION DAY 1931



Thelma Jones ‘31

1931

Twenty –six graduates were surrounded by a throng of parents and friends, and baskets of beautiful flowers everywhere

Mayor Peebles presented the diplomas and graduation pins. He congratulated the Sisters of St Joseph and declared that the 

interest felt in their work was evidenced by the large attendance. 

“I assure them that the city appreciates their work. It has saved the city and the citizens hundreds of thousand 

of dollars, which must have been expended in extensions to the General Hospital if St Joseph’s had not been established. 

There should be close co-operation between the city and the hospital  as well as between the General Hospital and St Joseph’s.” 

He commented that for skilled services of 12 hours a day, the nurse received $6. 

A mechanic for similar time, received $15 and an unskilled labourer received $6 to $6.50

At the conclusion of the exercises, all present were guests at afternoon tea, served in the attractive gardens. 



PRIZE WINNERS 1936

Top Row: (left to right)

Marcella Carr prize for medical nursing and examination

Wilhemenia Lothian prize for preventive medicine

Gertrude Boyd prize for obstetrical nursing

Irene Whitaker prize for gynecological nursing

Bottom Row: (left to right)

Ruth Decker prize for examination and nursing in diseases of the ear, nose and throat

Marguerite Cupples prize for highest standing in theory

Lena Everett prize for general efficiency

Dorothy Hurst prize for surgical nursing and examination

1936



Class of 1936

Picture donated by Gary Barr son of Anne Federchuk

1936

1936

Graduation exercise took place in the flower decked reception room of the Undermount Nurses Residence. 

The nurses were charming in their immaculate white uniforms and carried bouquets of red roses tied with gold. 

Later, refreshments were enjoyed in the garden. There were 26 graduates in the class of 1936

Dr Downes presided over the celebration. He complimented Sister Superior Mother Martina, noting she had 

been at St Joseph’s for 46 years. He spoke of many things accomplished in the pathological and X-ray 

departments of the hospital. The School of Nursing was established 25 years ago and he paid tribute to the 

efficiency of the present superintendent, Sister Monica ‘27 

There had been recent criticisms of the long hours of duty of nurses.

Dr Downes said that St Joseph’s nurses worked eight and a half hours per day, those on day duty getting two 

half-days per week and two hours off every day. Night nurses had two days and two nights off each month.  

TOP ROW left to right Dolores Sherk, Agnes O’Neil, Dorothy Hurst, Wilhelmine Lothian, 

Margaret Nelligan, Katherine Gillen, Kathleen Barry, 

Irene Whittaker, Irene McCarthy

MIDDLE ROW left to right Anne Federchuk, Marcella Carr, Gwendolyn Keary, 

Florence Roach Reg. N. – Instructress of Nurses

Jean Fox, Gertrude Boyd, Mary Kelly, Mary Miller, Marguerite Cupples.

THIRD ROW left to right Ruth Decker. Dorothy Dwyer, Lena Everett, Marion Fleming, 

Nellie Ferguson, Elizabeth Cocker, Helen Balfe, Jessie MacNaughton, 

Absent from Photo: Sister M. St. Joseph 


